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NEW IRELAND ASSURANCE COMPANY, PUBLIC LIMITED COMPA NY
DIRECTORS’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

The Directors are pleased to submit their AnnugldReand Financial Statements of the Company ferytdar ended 31
December 2014.

Principal activities
The principal activity of the Company is the tractgan of life assurance and pension business inRépublic of
Ireland.

Review of the Business
The Company performed well in 2014 in a competitine challenging environment for the Irish lifeursnce industry.

« The Company has an excellent distribution netwar#t @ strong product range particularly in the protacti
market with the Life Choice contract and with itgte of investment funds, including its iFunds ranghich
was launched in 2014 hrough itsstrong relationship with some of the world’s leaginvestment managers,
the Company have created a range of diversifiedfglims called iFunds. Each iFunds portfolio offers
diversification by investment manager, fund andetiskass and has been built to match a specifcprisfile.
Since its launch, iFunds have performed well imgof both sales and fund performance.

¢ New business volumes increased by 7% in Annual Rrariquivalent terms (regular premium new business
plus 10% of single premiums) in line with the markehe Company’s overall market share of new bisine
remained at 24%. The overall market is showing sighrecovery but over-capacity remains a significa
challenge that continues to put pressure on pecesss all channels.

e Sales were ahead in each channel with pensionaiegtgmium and life single premium sales showingrgt
growth. The nature of the life single premium mardkas changed recently with a move back towardgyequ
and property based funds and away from capitalaguteed products.

« The Company’s capital position continues to bergfraith cover of over 1.71 times the minimum staityt
solvency margin requirement in 2014. The Compang palividend of €270.0 million to its parent dugithe
year.

e Over the year, the Company has invested a signifiaenount of its resources in supporting the lifelioe
system for the bank channel. Life on line providastomers with access to their policy informatiorotugh the
Bank of Ireland banking on line service.

* New Ireland retained its number one position inRHBA Broker awards for the third year in a row.

e In July 2014 the Company completed a capital resiring exercise. This comprised of a €80 million
perpetual subordinated debt issued by New Irelartteg Bank of Ireland Group and a contingent lok@1@0
million with an external third party investor seedron the value in force of certain unit linkedipiels.

Financial Review

The embedded value method is widely used withinlifieeassurance industry and the Company consittes the
performance of the business is more appropriatdlgated in the embedded value profit reportinghodblogy which
shows a strong rise in the Company’s operatingitstdfnder this approach, which is set out beldw, dperating profit
for the twelve month period ended 31 December 20d<1€92.2 million (2013: €88.1 million).

Embedded Value Performance

2014 2013

£€m €m

New business profits 10.6 135
Existing business portfolio

- Planned profit 66.6 64.7

- Experience variance mortality 8.3 9.0

- Experience variance persistency 4.7 1.7

- Actuarial basis changes 2.0 (0.8)

81.6 74.6

Operating profit 92.2 88.1



NEW IRELAND ASSURANCE COMPANY, PUBLIC LIMITED COMPA NY
DIRECTORS’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Financial Review (continued)

The accounts as prepared in accordance with adogustandards generally accepted in Ireland shaedaction in
profit for the year to €64.9 million (2013: €112uillion) which is caused by falling interest rates2014 and the
positive impact of the bases changes in 2013.

Across the key lines the experience can be destebdollows:

e Total premiums received in the year of €1.8 billieere broadly in line with 2013 (€1.7 billion). Prmaims net
of reassurance of €1.73 billion (2013: €1.49 hil)iavere higher as the prior year included the impddhe
partnership arrangement to reinsure the annuitinbss.

Premiums accounted for as insurance contractsnp$@% to €1.44 billion (2013: €1.29 billion).

« Total investment return was a positive €1.5 billi@®13: €1.2 billion) reflecting growth in equitpé bond
markets during the year. Irish property values gséwngly while property investments outside thedcEzone
benefited from exchange rate movements. Total siggetwv by 10% to €16.6 billion (2013: €15.1 billjon

e Gross insurance claims paid decreased by 6% tod€lilllon (2013: €1.10 billion) as persistency tien
continue to improve.

* Net technical provisions increased by €1.3 billi@813: increase €0.6 billion), due mainly to ther@ase in
value of policyholders investments.

« Net operating expenses (excluding commissions, @bstles, depreciation and non core costs) wefel€7
million in the year (2013: €71.1 million). This ke€ted increased pension costs and the one of§ enising
from the new career and reward framework implentemte2014.

Actuarial Valuations

The Company’s assurance liabilities at 31 Decenatd4, as detailed in Notes 17, 18 and 19, wereedahy the
Company’s Appointed Actuary, Mr. David Roberts, FSEhe bases and methods of valuation employed@msistent
with those used in the returns prepared under thegean Communities (Life Assurance) Framework Reiguns,
1994. The valuation set out in the regulatory metus adjusted for inclusion in these financiatestants through the
removal of certain prudential reserves requireddgylation.

Distributable Profits for the year

2014 2013

€m €m
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 74.2 128.5
Tax on profit on ordinary activities (9.3) (16.1)
Profit on ordinary activities after tax 64.9 112.4
Transfer to non-distributable reserves 110.1 (12.4)
Distributable profit for the ye 175.( 100.(

The distributable profit represents a transfer b¥¥£0 million (2013: €100.0 million) from the pofitolder funds to the
shareholder funds. This transfer is a movemenhefftee funds within the Company from the Long Tdund to
distributable profit. Dividends can only be paid ofi distributable profits, subject to board appband a satisfactory
solvency position.

Capital Movements and Dividends

Shareholder funds decreased€885.3 million (2013: increase €22.6 million) iretlyear due to profits after tax of
€64.9 million less an increase in the pension fdeficit of €30.2 million (net of tax of €4.4 millig and €270.0 million
of dividends paid.

In 2014 the Directors authorised the payment oivadend of €270.0 million (2013: €93.0 million) ®ank of Ireland
Life Holdings Limited. Of this, €200m was relateglthe perpetual subordinated debt of €80 milliod arcontingent
loan of €120 million received and paid to its pamh. Holdings on the 29 July 2014.
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NEW IRELAND ASSURANCE COMPANY, PUBLIC LIMITED COMPA NY
DIRECTORS’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Summary Income Statement Presentation

The table below summarises the profit and loss @wticoto its various constituent components (prensiuclaims,
investment income, expenses and policyholder ltads).

2014 2013
€m €m
Premium Income 1,832.6 1,709.8
Reinsurers' share of premiums (103.2) (223.7)
Claims paid (1,734.9) (1,822.8)
Reinsurers' share of claims 75.0 70.6
Investment Return 1,545.9 1,227.7
Operating Expenses (167.6) (162.4)
Change in Deferred Income Liability 6.4 6.0
Investment charges (15.6) (19.5)
Interest on loans and borrowings (2.6) -
1,436.0 785.7
Movement in linked liabilities (914.2) (607.1)
Net movement in non linked liabilities (420.3) (24.4)
Tax charge attributable to the life assurance lassin (36.6) (41.8)
Profit for the financial year 64.9 112.4

Holding Company

The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bankirefand Life Holdings Limited which is incorporaten the
Republic of Ireland. The ultimate parent companthis Governor and Company of the Bank of Irelandchviis also
incorporated in the Republic of Ireland.

Subsidiaries
The information required by Section 16(1) of then(panies (Amendment) Act, 1986 is contained in tifermation
provided in Note 23 to the financial statements.

In 2011 a receiver was appointed to BSQ Limitedubsidiary of the Company. BSQ Limited is a spepialpose
vehicle created to purchase on behalf of policybdda development known as Beacon South Quart8atilyford,
Dublin. The acquisition was financed by way of mited recourse loan from Bank of Ireland. The vatdethis
development has fallen significantly below the leatue and the current income from the developrigimsufficient to
meet interest repayments. As the loan is limiteduese we anticipate, in accordance with the Logre@ément (subject
to formal notification from the Bank), that the etssof BSQ Limited will be liquidated and the predes will be retained
by the Bank in final discharge of the loan. Theas heen no change in the status of BSQ Limitechdu014.

Directors and Secretary
The names of persons who were directors at anydimiag the year are set out on page 2. Unlesswite stated, the
Directors served for the entire period.
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Directors’ and Secretary’s interest in shares
The beneficial interests of the Directors and Sacyeof the Company, in office at 31 December 20adluding those
of spouses and minor children, in the shares oGtxéernor and Company of the Bank of Ireland aarduary 2014 (or
date of appointment if later) and 31 December 20é&re

31 December 2014 1 January 2014
(or date of appointment )
Directors Ordinary shares Ordinary shares
of €0.64 each of €0.64 each
Pat Healy - -
Sean Casey 45,365 45,365
David Swanton 32,196 32,196
Denis Kelleher 11,613 11,613
Des Crowley 1,515,253 1,515,253
Mick Sweeney 194,653 194,653
David Roberts 6,893 6,893
Liam McLoughlin 82,933 82,933
Ashok Gupta - -
Tom Barry 265,010 265,010
Sean Crowe 34,572 34,572
Eilish Finan - -
Secretary
Peter Gray 6,031 6,031

The Directors and Secretary and their spouses andrrohildren had no other interests in the issgkdres of any
group company at 31 December 2014.

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the®@ars’ Report and the financial statements in atanece with Irish
law.

Irish law requires the directors to prepare finahstatements giving a true and fair view of thetesof the company’s
affairs and of its profit or loss for the year themded. Under that law the directors have elecqitépare the financial
statements in accordance with Generally Acceptecbiating Practice in Ireland (accounting standasdsed by the
Financial Reporting Council and promulgated byltisitute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland).

In preparing these financial statements, the dirsctre required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then aftygyn consistently;
* make judgements and estimates that are reasorableradent;

- prepare the financial statements on the going gonbasis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping propekbaf account that disclose with reasonable acguaany time the
financial position of the company and enable therartsure that the financial statements have besredy prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Companits 2063 to 2013.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenamckiategrity of the corporate and financial infotroa included on
the Bank’'s website. Legislation in Ireland govennithhe preparation and dissemination of financiateshents may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

The directors are responsible for safeguardingaisets of the company and hence for taking realostdps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irragtiés.
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Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared oing goncern basis and in accordance with the Corapaicts, 1963
to 2013, the European Communities (Insurance Uakieigs: Accounts) Regulations, 1996 and Generatigefted
Accounting Practice in Ireland (accounting standasdued by the Financial Reporting Council andruigated by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland).

Books of Account

The measures taken by the Directors to secure ¢amngel with the Company’s obligation to keep propeoks of
account are the use of appropriate systems an@quoes and employment of competent persons. Thieshad@account
are kept at 11/12 Dawson Street, Dublin 2.

Governance

The Company is subject to requirements of the @emank of Ireland’s Corporate Governance Code Goedit
Institutions and Insurance Undertakings (2013)luidiog those additional requirements for major itndbns, as the
Company has been so designated by the Central &amn&land. This code imposes minimum core starslaggbn all
insurance undertakings licensed or authorised eyCintral Bank of Ireland and additional requiretsarmpon major
institutions, so as to ensure that an appropriaterabust corporate governance framework is ingolatd implemented
to reflect the risk and nature of the undertaking.

Governance Structure
The Board acknowledges primary responsibility foe torporate governance within the Company. Therdbas
approved a Board Charter and a schedule of Md®esgrved.

The Board operates the following committees;
e Audit
* Risk
¢ |nvestment
* Nomination & Governance
« Remuneration

Each committee of the Board is subject to a TerfrReference (drafted in accordance with the Comjsastandard)
which details the authority delegated to the con@mijt how it should be exercised and the means hghwihe
committee reports to the Board. The Board thengddés executive management of the Company to theadiiag
Director subject to a set of key policies. The Mging Director’'s key objective is to manage the bass to achieve
(and report against) the annual budget subjetta@pproved risk appetite statement and key pslafieche Company.

The Managing Director, working with the senior mgament team is responsible for ensuring that thectibes of the
team are clear and consistent with the strategio fiirough personal objectives and key prioriti¢s.must also ensure
that resources and skills are adequate to delineptan within the policies of the Company.

Board and Board Composition
In accordance with the requirements of the Corgo@dvernance Code, the Board undertook a revieRoafd and
Director effectiveness during the year includingfioning Directors had sufficient time to dedicabethe role.
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A summary of each of the Directors is as follows;

Director Category Date of Committee memberships
Appointment
Pat Healy Senior Independent NED | 28/04/2010 Nomination and Governance,
Chairman (Appointed Remuneration
Chairman
30/04/2014)
John Collins Independent NED 15/09/2004 Nomination and Governance,
(Resigned Remuneration
30/04/2014)
Sean Casey Executive- Managing 03/04/1996 Risledtment
Dermot Murray Group NED 30/09/1999
(Resigned
31/07/2014)
David Swanton Executive 03/04/1996 Investment
Denis Kelleher Executive 27/03/2008
Des Crowley Group NED 27/03/2008
Mick Sweeney Group NED 30/09/2009 Nomination amm/&nance,
Remuneration, Investment, Risk
David Roberts Executive 23/02/2010 Risk, Investmen
Liam McLoughlin Group NED 16/02/2011 Audit
Ashok Gupta Independent NED 01/01/2013 Risk (Chaiyit
Aidan Holton Independent NED 26/04/2013 Investment (Chair), Audit
(resigned
30/06/2014)
Tom Barry Independent NED 10/04/2014 Nomination &walernance (Chair),
Remuneration (Chair), Audit (Chair),
Risk
Sean Crowe Group NED 30/07/2014 Investment
Eilish Finan Independent NED 18/11/2014 Investni@mair), Audit

Fitness and Probity

The Central Bank Reform Act (2010) introduced austaty system for the regulation by the Central Bahlreland of
persons performing control functions and pre appdozontrol functions in regulated entities. Then&#s and Probity
Standards (Code issued under Section 50 of the gpegify the minimum standards of fitness and pyolwhich all
persons performing control functions or pre appdosentrol functions shall apply in relation to #ueas of competence
and capability, acting honestly, ethically and wittegrity and being financially sound.

The regime applied to pre approved control fundidrom 2011, and from December 2012 to control tions.
Following a Board review, the Board was able toatode that all control functions pre approved cohfunctions,
including all Directors and certain other employee=e compliant with the Fitness and Probity Stagslaand had
obtained each person’s written agreement to abjdaebStandards.

Risk Strategy

The Company is required under the Corporate Gomema&ode to have a documented risk appetite. TreedBis
required to ensure that the risk management framewnd internal controls reflect the risk appettal that there are
adequate arrangements in place to ensure that iheegular reporting to the Board on compliancéhwvthe risk
appetite.

The risk strategy sets out the key principles wiidefine the framework of risk management within @@mpany. This
ensures risk is managed in a manner consistenttiéttCompany’s Strategic Plan and that the Compargpital and
reputation is maintained in order to compete agively in the life assurance and pensions markisk Bontrols and
reporting mechanisms are in place to alert managetdreaches (including potential breaches) isfrikk strategy.
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The key principles of the Company’s risk stratery. a

Capital
Solvency

Company’s Capital

Strategic Decisions

Profit
Embedded Value

Reputational
Culture

Documentation

Advice

Treating Customers
Fairly

Regulator
Operational / HR
Employees

Resources

Remuneration

Business Recovery

The Central Bank of Ireland requires thatratio of free assets to the Required Minimum
Solvency Margin should exceed 150%.

Manage the interests of the Caypathin the risk appetite approved by the Board.

Financial Condition Report / Own Risk Solvency Asssaent (ORSA) used as part of
major and strategic decision making process.

The impact of the net aggregatesexpato stress tests should not reduce the current
embedded value by more than 30%.

Ensure risk management is part of the ceilkd every aspect of the business.

All marketing literature, contractuldcumentation and correspondence will be clear,
transparent and easy to understand. The Compangtegy is to ensure that its customers
can make informed decisions based on the presamtsftits documentation.

Advice offered by its financial advisors @ all times compliant with all regulatory
requirements and best industry practice.

All customers are treated fairly and honestly atiadles when transacting business with
the Company.

An open and transparent relationship antained with the Central Bank of Ireland.
Compliance with all legal and statutory requirersent

Protect the safety of the Company’s eyagi®.

Ensure the Company has sufficient anguatiy qualified staff. Key staff are of good
repute and integrity and meet fit and proper datat all times.

Incentive schemes will reward longténancial stability and risk control and will not
promote growth outside risk appetite.

The Company will maintain andlaty test an adequate business recovery plan.
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Risk Management
The Board has assigned the following duties tcdBthard Risk Committee under the Committee’s TermReference:

The preparation for approval by the Board of:
e the risk management framework,
« the risk management policy,
« the risk appetite statement, and
« the risk management annual plan.
e the Financial Condition Report / ORSA.

The Board Risk Committee will also monitor the éoling:
« adequacy of controls to ensure appropriatenedy, mavention, detection and completeness.
e controls are proportionate to risk.
« the review of escalation mechanisms.
< the review of remedial action proposals where expoi (potential) breach of tolerance limits.
» liaison with Internal Audit to consider their anhaadit plan.

The Company applies a three line of defence appréaaisk management. The first line of defencehis senior
manager responsible for the risk and internal cbrénvironment of the relevant area. It is the oegibility of the

relevant senior manager to identify, quantify, nnieagagainst the risk appetite and tolerance),robnhanage, mitigate
and report on risk exposures in his/her area. Hoorgl line of defence is provided by the Risk Mamagnt and
Compliance functions. These units support goddmanagement oversight and independently assesepad on the
key risk areas of the business. The third lineejédce is that of Internal Audit.

Solvency Il
The current Solvency | regime will be replaced by Solvency Il regime on the 1 January 2016. Th@@aan Union
bodies and the Central Bank of Ireland have isslegislation and regulation to support the new regiand
requirements for the interim phase. The Companyahalanned programme of work to provide for a madagansition
to Solvency Il

Political Donations
Political donations are required to be disclosedeurthe Electoral Acts 1992 to 2012. The Directorsgnquiry, have
satisfied themselves that there were no politicaladions made during the year ended 31 December. 201

Principal Financial Risks
The most significant financial risks faced by then@pany are in the areas of interest rate risk,teguice risk, currency
risk, lapse risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.description of these risks is contained in Noted®the accounts.
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Internal Controls

The Directors acknowledge their overall responsibility for the Company’s systems of internal control. Such systems can
provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material financial misstatement or fraud. Such losses could
arise because of the nature of the Company’s business in undertaking a wide range of financial services that inherently
involve varying degrees of risk.

The Company’s overall control systems include:

*  Aclearly defined organisation structure with defined authority limits and reporting mechanisms to higher levels
of management and to the Board which support the maintenance of a strong control environment;

* Board Committees, with appropriate terms of reference, responsible for core policy areas;

* An annual budgeting and monthly financial reporting system, which enables progress against longer-term
objectives and annual plans to be monitored, trends to be evaluated and variances to be acted upon;

* A comprehensive set of policies and procedures relating to capital expenditure, financial risks (including
interest, currency and liquidity risk) and operational risk management, and

® An Audit Committee that reviews the effectiveness of the systems of control,

Controls are reviewed systematically by Group Internal Audit of the Governor and Company of the Bank of Ireland,
.which has a group-wide role and which links in directly to the Chair of the Company’s Audit Committee. Emphasis is
focused on areas of greatest risk as identified by risk analysis.

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls is assessed on an ongoing basis and is formally reviewed by the
Audit Committee and by the Board. This is achieved primarily by a review of the risk self assessment returns from
management, of the work of the Group Internal Audit function, and of the reports provided by the Company’s external
auditors, which include details of any material internal control issues identified.

The Directors confirm that the systems of internal control in existence in the Company for the year ended 31 December
2014 are satisfactory.

Subsequent Events

No significant events, affecting the Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings, have occurred since the balance
sheet date.

Auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, have indicated their willingness to be re-appointed in accordance with section
160(2) of the Companies Act, 1963.

Directors

Date: 30 April 2015 //

= (,//
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the members of New Ireland Assurance Company, Public Limited Company

We have audited the financial statements of New Ireland Assurance Company, Public Limited
Company for the year ended 31 December 2014 which comprise the accounting policies and estimation
techniques, the profit and loss account, the statement of total recognised gains and losses, the balance
sheet and the related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is Irish law and accounting standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council and
promulgated by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland (generally accepted accounting
practice in Ireland).

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the statement of directors’ responsibilities set out on page 6, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements giving a true and fair view. Our
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with Irish
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a
body in accordance with Section 193 of the Companies Act, 1990 and for no other purpose. We do not,
in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person
to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our
prior consent in writing,.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the
directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the
financial and non-financial information in the directors’ report to identify material inconsistencies
with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of
performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies
we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice in Ireland of
the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2014 and of its profit for the year then
ended; and

. have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Acts, 1963

to 2013 and the European Communities (Insurance Undertakings: Accounts) Regulations, 1996.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, One Spencer Dock, North Wall Quay, Dublin 1, Ireland, I.D.E. Box No. 137
T: +353 (0) 1 792 6000, F: +353 (0) 1 792 6200, Wwww.pwc.ie

Chartered Accountants
12



pwc

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the members of New Ireland Assurance Company, Public Limited Company —
continued

Matters on which we are required to report by the Companies Acts, 1963 to 2013

s We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the
purposes of our audit.

° In our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the company.

. The financial statements are in agreement with the books of account.

. In our opinion the information given in the report of the directors is consistent with the
financial statements.

. The net assets of the company, as stated in the balance sheet, are more than half of the amount

of its called-up share capital and, in our opinion, on that basis there did not exist at 31
December 2014 a financial situation which under Section 40(1) of the Companies (Amendment)
Act, 1983 would require the convening of an extraordinary general meeting of the company.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the provisions in the Companies Acts, 1963 to 2013 which
require us to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of directors’ remuneration and
transactions specified by law are not made.

G

Paraic Joyce

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm
Dublin

30 April 2015
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NEW IRELAND ASSURANCE COMPANY, PUBLIC LIMITED COMPA NY
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATION TECHNIQUES

The significant accounting policies and estimatechniques adopted by the Company are as follows:

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared irrdacoe with accounting standards generally accéptéeland and
Irish statute, comprising the Companies Acts, 1862013 and the European Communities (Insuranceettiskings:
Accounts) Regulations, 1996 (the “Regulations”)jolihcover the format and content of insurance campccounts.
The financial statements have been prepared inr@dacoe with applicable standards. A summary oftbee important
accounting policies is set out below, together aithexplanation of where changes have been maate¥®us policies
on adoption of new accounting standards in the.y&ecounting standards generally accepted in Igkianpreparing
financial statements giving a true and fair view #rose published by the Institute of Charteredofotants in Ireland
and issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

Compliance with Statement of Standard AccountingcBee (“SSAP”) 19 - Accounting for Investment Peoles
requires departure from the requirements of theuRg¢igns relating to depreciation and an explamatibthe departure
is given in the accounting policy note relatinginwestments below. The financial statements alsopty with the
statement of recommended practice on Accountindgnsurance Business (“ABI SORP”) issued by the &&g®n of
British Insurers in December 2005 and revised inddgber 2006.

Historic Cost Convention
The financial statements are prepared under theritial cost convention modified by the valuatidnirvestments as
outlined in the accounting policy for investmentdad below.

Contract Classification
The Company issues contracts that transfer insarask or financial risk or both.

Insurance contracts are those contracts that sasgfnificant insurance risk. Such contracts mag &ransfer financial
risk. As a general guideline, the Company defirgesignificant insurance risk the possibility of hyto pay benefits
on the occurrence of an insured event that areast 5% or more than the benefits payable if thergd event did not
occur. A contract classified as an insurance cohttantinues to be treated as such until all rigimts obligations under
the contract expire. All non unit linked policiessuied are insurance contracts.

Investment contracts are those contracts that fenariimancial risk with no significant insuranceski Unit linked
contracts written by the Company where the liapilihder the contract is dependent on the valuég@fuinderlying
financial assets, derivatives and / or investmeaperty are classified as investment contractsssriflee contracts also
contain features that transfer significant insuearisk.

Insurance Premiums

Premiums written, other than those in respect dflinked policies, are accounted for on an acaumsis. Unit linked
insurance contract premiums are accounted foreérs#fime period as the policy liabilities resultirgr those premiums
are created. This is normally the period of receipt

Outward reinsurance premiums are accounted focdordance with the contract terms when due for gaym
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NEW IRELAND ASSURANCE COMPANY, PUBLIC LIMITED COMPA NY
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATION TECHNIQUES

Insurance Claims

Maturity claims and annuities are recognised whee fbr payment. Surrenders are accounted for wizéah qr, if
earlier, on the date when the policy ceases tmtladed within the calculation of the life assumteisiness provision
and /or the technical provision for linked liabhés. Death claims and all other claims are accauftewhen notified.
Reinsurance recoveries are accounted for in the gmriod as the related claim. A provision is memleeflect risk
related claims incurred in the year but which wasenotified to the Company at the balance shetet da

Unit Linked Investment Contracts

Amounts received in respect of investment contrasfsich principally involve the transfer of finaatirisk, are
accounted for using deposit accounting, under whilounts collected are credited directly to thebed sheet, as an
adjustment to the liability to the policyholdernkncial liabilities in respect of investment contsaare carried in the
balance sheet within ‘Technical provisions for dKiabilities’.

Fees receivable from investment contracts (incluotedOther technical income’), investment incomedainterest
payable on contract balances are recognised iprtifid and loss account in the year they are asslegsless they relate
to services to be provided in future years, in Wwhiase they are deferred and recognised as theeénprovided.

Incremental costs that are directly attributablesdouring investment contracts and are expectbe tecoverable, are
deferred and recognised in the balance sheet asrél@facquisition costs. The asset is amortis¢teaselated fees for
investment management services are recognised.

Investment Return

Investment return comprises all investment incoraalised investment gains and losses and moverentwealised
gains and losses, net of investment expenses amdesh Dividends are included as investment incomthe date that
the shares are quoted ex-dividend. Interest, moheapenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Realised gains and losses on investments carriiil aalue are calculated as the difference betwest sales proceeds
and purchase price. In the case of investmentaded at amortised cost, realised gains and lossesakculated as the
difference between sale proceeds and their latastiog value. Movements in unrealised gains anssde on
investments represent the difference between thedhie at the balance sheet date and their psechece or their fair
value at the last balance sheet date, together thwithreversal of unrealised gains and losses résedjrin earlier
accounting periods in respect of investment disigaeahe current period.

Investment in Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiary undertakings and pasdtang interests are stated in the balance sheestsat Investments are
written down where necessary to reflect impairnvetmere the carrying value exceeds net realisablesval

Management Expenses
Management expenses, administration and non-atignisiosts are charged to the technical accounlifloassurance
business when incurred.

15



NEW IRELAND ASSURANCE COMPANY, PUBLIC LIMITED COMPA NY
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATION TECHNIQUES

Deferred Acquisition Costs
Acquisition costs comprise the direct and indilemsts of acquiring and processing new business.

For regular premium contracts, where a series wiréupremiums are expected to be received, onlgridop of the
acquisition costs incurred in the year of sale @eered by the revenue margins received in that. yi@e balance
remains to be covered by margins in future yeadsimshown as deferred acquisition costs in thenfinal statements.

For contracts which recoup charges during an Initén allocation period, the rate of amortisatidntiee deferred
acquisition costs is based on a prudent assessrhtre expected pattern of receipt of the futureneie margins. The
future revenue margins utilised include only thosergins earned during the non-allocation period.

For contracts where the charges are spread ovdifeéhef the policy, the amortisation rate is umifo over the first
five/ten years of the contracts (five for insuranoatracts and structured products and ten forsimvent contracts).

For single premium business and group risk corgradbere acquisition expenses are recovered immeddithere is no
deferral of acquisition costs. For single premiunsibess, where acquisition expenses are not resthvemmediately,
there is deferral of the acquisition costs, witmi&orm amortisation rate over the first five/tegays of the contract.

Foreign Currency
Items included in the financial statements of themPany are measured using Euro, the functionalenayr of the
economic environment in which the Company operates.

Foreign currency transactions are translated intwoEusing the exchange rates prevailing at the sdafethe
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and lossedtimgsfrom the settlement of such transactions #mn the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monedasets and liabilities denominated in foreign cwies are
recognised in the profit and loss account for theqa.

Translation differences on non monetary items, agkquities held at fair value through profitasd, are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss.

Operating Leases
Rentals payable under operating leases are chardhd profit and loss account as incurred oveldhse term.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised when paid.

Pensions

The Company operates a defined benefit pensiomseh€he pension asset / liability recognised inkthkance sheet is
the present value of the schemes’ liabilities thesvalue of the schemes’ assets net of relateztréef tax. The pension
cost for the scheme is analysed between curreniceecost, past service cost and net return orpéresion scheme.
Current service cost is the actuarially calculgbeglsent value of the benefits earned by the aetmployees in each
period. Past service costs, relating to employeecgein prior periods arising in the current perias a result of the
introduction of, or improvement to, retirement bi@se are recognised in the profit and loss — tédlnaccount on a
straight-line basis over the period in which ther@ase in benefit vests.

Net expected return on the pension assets compiighe expected return on the pension schemesassstinterest on
scheme liabilities.

The actuarial gains and losses which arise fromlaation and from updating the latest actuariabatbn to reflect

conditions at the balance sheet date are takemetgstatement of total recognised gains and lossethé period. The
attributable deferred taxation is shown separatetiie statement of total recognised gains anceloss
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NEW IRELAND ASSURANCE COMPANY, PUBLIC LIMITED COMPA NY
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATION TECHNIQUES

Taxation
Taxation is provided on profits and income earmeddte less relief.

Deferred tax is provided in relation to unrealiggins or losses on unit linked assets and exglioitl all other timing
differences that have originated but not revergatieabalance sheet date where transactions otsetrat result in an
obligation to pay more tax in the future or a righpay less tax in the future have occurred ab#iance sheet date.

Timing differences are temporary differences betwgmfits as computed for tax purposes and praBtstated in the
financial statements, which arise because certainsi of income and expenditure in the financialestents are dealt
with in different years for tax purposes.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates thabtgpected to apply in the years in which the timiliierences are
expected to reverse, based on tax rates and lawvhalve been enacted or substantially enactedebpdtance sheet
date. Deferred tax is recognised in the profit Exsd account for the period, except to the extat it is attributable to
a gain or loss that is recognised directly in tia¢esnent of total recognised gains and losses.

Investments

Land and buildings
Land and buildings are valued at open market vigoat~ull valuations are made by independent, mifmally
qualified valuers every year.

In accordance with SSAP 19, no depreciation or &sadion is provided in respect of freehold investinproperties
and leasehold investment properties with over 203/&® run. Under the Regulations, land and builsliare required to
be depreciated over their expected useful econdimés. This requirement conflicts with the generadiccepted
accounting principle set out in SSAP 19. The Destconsider that, as these properties are helihf@stment, to
depreciate them would not give a true and fair yiemd that it is necessary to adopt SSAP 19 inrdadgive a true and
fair view.

Other financial investments

The Company classifies its financial assets ineoftllowing categories: Shares and other variaiégdysecurities and
units in unit trusts — at fair value through prdfitloss; debt securities and other fixed-inconmustes — at fair value
through profit or loss; and deposits with credistitutions - loans and receivables. Managementrihgtes the
classification of its investments at initial recitgm and re-evaluates this at every reporting date

(a) Shares and other variable-yield securities angits in unit trusts, and debt securities and othixed interest
securities — at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets designated at fair value througiitpand loss at inception are those that are mateaand whose
performance is evaluated on a fair value basi®rinétion about these financial assets is providégimally on a fair
value basis to the entity’'s key management perdomhe investment strategy for these asset typé&siisvest in listed
and unlisted equity securities and fixed interagt debt securities, and derivatives designated upibal recognition at
fair value through profit or loss.

The fair values of listed investments are basedurent bid prices on the balance sheet date. tddlimvestments for
which a market exists are also stated at the cubidrprice on the balance sheet date or the fadirtg day before that
date. The fair values of other unlisted investmefatis which no active market exists, are estabtishg the Directors
using valuation techniques which have prudent gkgarthe likely realisable value. These include aobeecent arms
length transactions, reference to other instrumérds are substantially the same, discounted dash dnalysis and
other pricing models.

Realised gains or losses on investments are peskantthe profit and loss account within investmérdome.
Unrealised gains or losses arising from changdiseidair value of financial assets at fair valuetigh profit or loss are
presented in the profit and loss account withinrgé#ised gains on investments’ or ‘Unrealised Isss® investments’
in the period in which they arise.
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NEW IRELAND ASSURANCE COMPANY, PUBLIC LIMITED COMPA NY
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATION TECHNIQUES

(b) Deposits with credit institutions - Loans andaeivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finarasakets with fixed or determinable payments thahateuoted in an
active market, other than those that the Compatends to sell in the short term or that it has giesied at fair value
through profit or loss. When a financial asseeisognised initially it is measured at fair valuasptransaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition oruissof the financial asset. Loans and receivablesiraiuded at the
amount of the advance outstanding at the balareet slate, less a provision for any irrecoverablewarn This basis of
valuation is viewed by the Directors as having pntdegard to the likely realisable value.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair valoa the date on which a derivative contract is eutdnto and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Gdaingthe fair value are recognised immediatelhenprofit and loss

account. Fair values are obtained from the quotedket prices in active markets, or using valuatiechniques,

including discounted cash flow models and optiorisiqy models, as appropriate. All derivatives eagried as assets
within investments for the benefit of life assuramolicyholders who bear the investment risk.

Derivative financial instruments also include fgreiexchange contracts, which include spot and fatveantracts.
These represent agreements to exchange the cumémee country for the currency of another courtryan agreed
price and settlement date. Gains and losses angnised in the profit and loss based on the exchaatg on date of
settlement or balance sheet date.

Tangible Assets and Depreciation
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulapeeciiion. Depreciation is calculated to amortisecost of the assets
over the period of their estimated useful livethatfollowing rates:

Computer equipment 20%-25% straight line
Office equipment 20%-25% straighel

Life Assurance Provision

The life assurance provision is calculated by tlem@any’s Appointed Actuary with due regard to tletuarial
principles laid down in the European Communitieffe(LAssurance) Framework Regulations, 1994. Thacipal
assumptions are contained in note 19.

The technical provisions relating to term assuraacd term critical illness are calculated usingrasg premium
valuation method, based on generally accepted @atyminciples. The provision is not less thanttivich would be
determined on an appropriate net premium valuati@thod. An expense provision is made for pensicurance
contracts secured by recurring single premiums fandannuity and future claim payments under immidnnuity
contracts. Tests of adequacy are carried out oregezves held for group life and disability inswa.

Technical Provision for Linked Liabilities
Liabilities under unit linked contracts are recagpa as and when the units are created and arediegem the value of
the underlying financial assets, derivatives aodihvestment properties.

Unit linked contracts which transfer significansimance risk, including guaranteed benefits, assdied as insurance
contracts and are carried in the balance sheem @n@unt determined by the valuation of the relataiis on the
valuation date.

Unit linked contracts which principally involve theansfer of financial risk are classified as inwgsnt contracts and

are carried in the balance sheet at fair value. félrevalue of these financial liabilities is eqalent to the amount
payable on demand without penalty.
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NEW IRELAND ASSURANCE COMPANY, PUBLIC LIMITED COMPA NY
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATION TECHNIQUES

Reinsurers’ Share of Technical Provisions
The reinsurers’ share of the technical provisiosiscalculated on a basis consistent with the caionlaof the
corresponding liabilities.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities which include bank overdraftseditors, loans , borrowings and subordinatdat dee recognised at
fair value. Other financial liabilities, carried &ir value, relate to unit linked investment caicts under ‘Technical
provision for Linked Liabilities’.

Non-Distributable Reserve

The surplus available for distribution is deterndingy the Appointed Actuary following his annual @stigation in
accordance with the requirements of the Europeann@mities (Life Assurance) Framework Regulatior#94L This
surplus is released from the non technical resang retained in the profit and loss account. Alh ribstributable
amounts in the profit and loss - non technical aotare transferred to the non-distributable reserv
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NEW IRELAND ASSURANCE COMPANY, PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Technical Account - Life Assurance Business

Earned premiums, net of reinsurance
Gross premiums written
Outward reinsurance premiums

Income and realised gains on investments
Unrealised gains on investments
Other technical income, net of reinsurance

Total technical income

Claims incurred, net of reinsurance
Claims paid

- gross amount

- reinsurers' share

Change in the provision for claims
- gross amount
- reinsurers' share

Change in technical provisions, net of reinsurance
Life assurance business provision, net of reinsurance

- gross amount
- reinsurers' share

Technical provisions for linked liabilities
Net operating expenses

Investment charges
Interest on loans and borrowings

Tax charge attributable to the life assurance business

Balance on the technical account - life assurance business

All of the amounts above are in respect of continuing operations.

Notes

L

18
18

18
18

17

2014

€m

1,443.0
103.2
1,339.8

658.6
887.3
57.8

2,943.5

(1,045.8)
76.0
(969.8)

10.6
(1.0)

9.6

(960.2)

(719.3)
299.0
(420.3)

(1,275.7)
(1,696.0)

(167.6)
(15.6)
(2.6)

(36.6)
(222.4)

64.9

2013

€m

1,287.7
223.7)
1,064.0

835.4
3923
55.8

2,347.5

(1,099.9)
76.1
(1,023.8)

(6.4)

(5.5)
(11.9)

(1,035.7)

(107.2)
82.8
(24.4)

(951.3)
(975.7)

(162.4)
(19.5)

(41.8)
(223.7)

112.4

The accounting policies and estimation techniques on pages 14 to 19 and notes on pages 24 to 54 form an integral part

of these financial statements.

Directors

e
‘/4.’(

)
Date: 30 April 2015 (I
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NEW IRELAND ASSURANCE COMPANY, PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Non-Technical Account

2014
Notes €m
Balance on the technical account - life assurance business 64.9
Tax attributable to shareholders' profit 8 9.3
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 7 74.2
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 8 . (9.3)
Profit for the financial year 64.9
Transfer from / (to) non-distributable reserve 18 110.1
Distributable profit 175.0
Dividend 9 (270.0)
Retained profit for the financial year (95.0)
Retained profit at the start of the year 100.2
Retained profit at the end of the year 18 332
STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES
2014
Notes €m
Profit on ordinary activities after tax 64.9
Actuarial (loss) / Gain 24 (34.6)
Deferred tax on actuarial loss / (Gain) 24 44
Total gains and losses recognised relating to the year 34.7

2013

€m

1124

16.1
128.5

(93.0)
7.0
932

100.2

7
(0.5)

115.6

The accounting policies and estimation techniques on pages 14 to 19 and notes on pages 24 to 54 form an integral part

of these financial statements.

Directors

Date: 30 April 2015 j fo,
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NEW IRELAND ASSURANCE COMPANY, PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

Dec-14 Dec-13
Assets
Notes €m €m
Investments
Land and buildings 10 17.1 13.4
Other financial investments 11 1,761.6 1,492.1
1,778.7 15055
Investments for the benefit of life assurance policyholders
who bear the investment risk 12 13,142.3 12,191.1
Reinsurers' share of technical provisions
Life assurance business provision 18 1,322.4 1,023.4
Claims outstanding 18 11.7 12.7
1,334.1 _____HiBel
Debtors
Debtors arising out of direct insurance operations
- policyholders 13 53.3 46.7
Due from fellow subsidiaries 0.9 0.7
Other debtors 5.1 4.4
59.3 s
Other assets
Tangible assets 14 6.0 Ty
Deferred taxation 21 - 6.6
Cash at bank 18.6 159
24.6 30.0
Prepayments and acerued income
Accrued interest and rent 37.5 56.2
Other prepayments and accrued income 0.8 4.5
Deferred acquisition costs 15 205.7 206.2
244.0 _______266.9
Total assets 16,583.0 15,081.4

The accounting policies and estimation techniques on pages 14 to 19 and notes on pages 24 to 54 form an integral
part of these financial statements.

Directors

A
Date: 30 April 2015 (ji ’
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NEW IRELAND ASSURANCE COMPANY, PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

Dec-14 Dec-13
Liabilities
Notes €m €m
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 20 228 22.8
Share premium account 2.1 257
Capital reserve 18 42.7 42.7
Non - distributable reserve 18 263.0 403.3
Profit and loss account 18 52 100.2
Sharcholders' funds - equity interests 25 359.4 594.7
Technical provisions
Life assurance business provision 18 2,573.0 1.853.7
Claims outstanding 18 121.8 132.4
2,694.8 _1.986.1
Technical provisions for linked liabilities 17 13,006.2 12,092.0
Accruals and deferred income 63.6 78.4
Deferred taxation 21 7.4 -
Creditors - Amounts falling due within one year
Creditors arising out of direct insurance operations 443 137.7
Due to fellow subsidiaries 11.8 9.9
Bank overdraft 42.7 48.2
Other creditors including tax and social security 16 61.6 76.8
160.4 27126
Creditors - Amounts falling due after one year
Loans and borrowings 29 202.6 -
Total liabilities excluding pension liability 16,494.4 15,023.8
Pension liability 24 88.6 S ; | |
Total liabilities including pension liability 16,583.0 15,081.4

The accounting policies and estimation techniques on pages 14 to 19 and notes on pages 24 to 54 form an integral part
of these financial statements.

Directors .

Date: 30 April 2015




NEW IRELAND ASSURANCE COMPANY, PUBLIC LIMITED COMPA NY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

1 PREMIUMS WRITTEN - CONTRACTS CLASSIFIED AS INSURAN CE

A. Gross Premiums Written

Unit-linked
Non Unit-linked

Periodic premiums

Unit-linked
Non Unit-linked

Single premiums

Total premiums written

Individual
Life
€m

81.0
115.0

196.0

444.6

444.6

640.6

Individual

Pensions
€m

75.1
0.7

75.8

352.9
90.0

442.9

518.7

Group
Contracts
€m

5.8
35.8

101.1

40.3
142.3

182.6

283.7

2014
Total Individual Indivi dual
Life Pensions
€m €m €m
221.4 90.6 67.1
151.5 105.4 0.7
2.97 196.0 67.8
837.8 333.3 306.2
232.3 - 101.0
70,0 333.3 407.2
1,443.0 529.3 5.a7

The written premiums above in 2014 and 2013 ariz@ tontracts which meet the FRS 26 definitiomstirance.
All business is written in the Republic of Ireland.
The written premiums from insurance contracts igl£€3.0 million (2013 : €1,287.7 million)

The written premiums premiums from insurance cagrand investment contracts is €1,832.6 millid®l@ €1,709.8 million)

24

Group
Contracts
€m

64.5
23.6

88.1

28.9
166.4

195.3

283.4

2013
Total

€m

222.2
297

351.9

668.4
726

935.8

1,287.7



NEW IRELAND ASSURANCE COMPANY, PUBLIC LIMITED COMPA NY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

1

PREMIUMS WRITTEN (CONTINUED)

B. Gross New Business Premiums

Individual

Life

€m
Unit-linked 5.0
Non Unit-linked 19.3
Periodic premiums 24.3
Unit-linked 444.6
Non Unit-linked -
Single premiums 444.6
Total new business premiums 468.9

Individual

Pensions
€m

36.9

36.9

352.9

90.0

442.9

479.8

2014 2013
Group Total Individual Indivi dual Group Total
Contracts Life Pensions Contracts
€m €m €m €m €m €m
59 61.4 5.3 26.8 16.5 48.6
- 19.3 21.7 - - 21.7
19.5 80.7 27.0 26.8 16.5 70.3
40.3 837.8 333.3 306.2 28.9 668.4
142.3 232.3 - 101.0 166.4 726
182.6 70,0 333.3 407.2 195.3 935.8
202.1 1,150.8 0.336 434.0 211.8 1,006.1

The new business premiums above in 2014 and 2048 fanm contracts which meet the FRS 26 defininbmsurance.
New business premiums from insurance contract$,&58.8 million (2013 : €1,006.1 million)

New business premiums from insurance contractsraratment contracts is €1,404.5 million (2013:321,.7 million)
All business is written in the Republic of Ireland.
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NEW IRELAND ASSURANCE COMPANY, PUBLIC LIMITED COMPA NY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2. STAFF COSTS

2014 2013
€m €m
Wages and salaries 334 321
Social security costs 3.5 3.3
Other pension costs (note 24) 6.0 5.8
42.¢ 41.2
The average number of employees during the yeaawésllows:
Sales and Marketing 146 157
Policy administration 296 310
Other adminstration 153 150
59k 617

Included in wages and salaries are sales commipsigments to staff of €2.3 million (2013: €2.8 ioifi).

3. INVESTMENT INCOME

2014 2013
€m €m
Income from land and buildings 36.5 40.3
Income from listed investments 222.2 194.8
Income from other investments 36.3 34.3
295.0 269.4
Net gains on realisation of investments 363.6 566.0
658.¢ 835.4
Investment Activity Report
Investment income 295.0 269.4
Investment management expenses (15.6) (19.5)
Net realised gains 363.6 566.0
Net unrealised gains 887.3 392.3
Total investment return 1,530. 1,208.:
Included in the total investment return are nehgair
losses on financial assets at fair value througffitpor loss:
Designated at FVTPL 363.6 566.0
Unrealised gains 887.3 392.3
Total net realised and unrealised gains included
in investment return 1,250.9 958.3

None of the investment income is derived from itwvests in any other group undertakings of Bankreliahd Life Holdings
Limited, the Company’s immediate parent.
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NEW IRELAND ASSURANCE COMPANY, PUBLIC LIMITED COMPA NY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

4. OTHER TECHNICAL INCOME, NET OF REASSURANCE

Other technical income of €57.8 million (2013: €55mnillion) comprises fees for policy administrati@amd asset
management services arising from unit — linked $twent contracts and movement in the deferred iedahility.

5. NET OPERATING EXPENSES

2014 2013

€m €m

Acquisition expenses 79.7 75.4
Change in deferred acquisition costs 0.5 4.1
Other expenses 87.4 82.9

167.¢ 162.¢

The analysis of operating expenses between comatipg cost and cost of sales is as follows:

Core operating expenses 76.1 71.1
Depreciation 2.9 4.3
Non core costs 1.8 0.6
80.8 76.0
Comission payments (including to employees) 83.0 79.5
Other sales related costs 3.3 2.8
Change in deferred acquisition costs 0.5 4.1
Total operating expens 167.€ 162.4

Acquisition expenses include an allocation of cosgioin on new business and operating expensesitetatthe acquisition of
new business.
Non core costs reflect the impact in 2014 of thgnpent relating to the new career and reward framiewo

6. COMMISSIONS

Total commissions for direct insurance incurredhl®yCompany during the year, excluding paymenesiiployees was €80.7
million (2013: €76.7 million).

7. PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

This is stated after charging 2014 2013
€m €m

Depreciation 2.9 4.3

Operating lease rentals other 0.5 0.5

Operating lease rentals property 1.9 1.7

Auditors' remuneration

- Statutory audit 0.4 0.4

- Other assurance services - -
- Tax advisory services - -
- Other non audit services

Total auditors' remunerati 0.4 0.4
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NEW IRELAND ASSURANCE COMPANY, PUBLIC LIMITED COMPA NY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

8. TAXATION
2014 2013
€m €m
Technical Account Charge
Corporation tax charge for the year 9.8 13.2
Relief for double taxation (1.8) (1.6)
Overseas tax 14.5 13.9
Prior year over provision 0.1 0.8
22.6 26.3
Deferred tax charge (note 21): Origination and resfeof timing
difference 14.0 15.5
36.€ 41.€
Non-Technical Account Charge
Irish corporation tax on profits for the yi 9.3 16.1

The tax charge on the non technical account fod28id 2013 is the same as the charge that wouldt fesm applying the
standard rate of Irish corporation tax to profitaydinary activities. The statutory rate appliegtofit before tax is 12.5%.

9. DIVIDEND
2014 2013
€m €m
Dividend paic 270.( 93.C
A dividend of €1.54 (2013: €0.53) per share wasl plairing the year.
10. LAND AND BUILDINGS
2014 2014 2013 2013
Mkt Value Cost Mkt Value Cost
€m €m €m €m
Investment properties 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.2
Owner occupied properties 17.0 9.9 13.3 9.9
17.1 10.1 13.4 10.1
A. Freehold 2014 2014 2013 2013
Mkt Value Cost Mkt Value Cost
€m €m €m €m
Investment properties - - - -
Owner occupied properties 1.4 1.2 1.4 1.2
1.4 1.2 1.4 1.2
B. Leasehold 2014 2014 2013 2013
Mkt Value Cost Mkt Value Cost
€m €m €m €m
Investment properties 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.2
Owner occupied properties 15.6 8.7 11.9 8.7
15.7 8.9 12.0 8.9
Total 17.1 10.1 13.4 10.1
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10. LAND AND BUILDINGS (continued)

Land and buildings are stated in the balance satetarket value. Movements in market value areughefl in the total
investment return. While the accounting standardslavnormally require the systematic depreciatibmeestment properties
and other land and buildings, the Directors condidat no depreciation is required as to deprecrem would not give a true
and fair view. Had investment properties and otaed and buildings been depreciated, there wowe theen no significant

effect on the profit retained for the year.

The valuations have been undertaken by Lisney (€teat Surveyors) in Ireland at a valuation dat8 oDecember 2014, in
accordance with The Statements of Asset ValuatiaetiRe and Guidance Notes issued by the SocieGhaftered Surveyors
in Ireland and in compliance with the European Camities (Life Assurance Accounts, Statements anduatans)

Regulations, 1986.

11. OTHER FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Financial Assets 2014
Mkt Value
€m

Financial Assets at fair value through
profit and loss

Designated upon initial recognition 1,593.3
Loans and receivables 168.3
Total financial asse 1,761.¢

Included in the balance sheet as follows:

Shares and other variable yield securities 17.0
Debt securities and other fixed income securities 574.1
Loans secured by mortgages and other loans 0.2
Deposits with credit institutions 168.3
1,761.¢

The debt securities and other fixed income seegriticluded above with a market value of €1,576illlom (2013:

million) are listed on a recognised investment excie.
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2014
Cost
€m

1,314.4
168.3

1,482."

17.0

1,297.2

0.2

168.3

1,482."

2013 2013
Mkt Value Cost
€m €m
204,2 1,160.6

287.9 287.9

1,492.. 1,448.t
761 17.6

1,186.4 1,142.8
0.2 0.2

287.9 287
1,492.. 1,448.t
€1,186.4
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

12. INVESTMENTS FOR THE BENEFIT OF LIFE ASSURANCE P OLICYHOLDERS WHO BEAR THE
INVESTMENT RISK

2014 2013
Mkt Value Cost Mkt Value
€m €m €m
Assets held to cover unit - linked insurance cangra 7,458.9 6,823.7 6,683.3
Assets held to cover unit - linked investment cactis 5,683.4 5,199.5 5,507.8
13,142.. 12,023.. 12,191.:

Cost
€m

6,421.7
5,292.3

11,714.(

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonablyogjppate the fair value at the balance sheet dite. market value of
these assets, where the investment risk is borndéyolicyholders, includes €2,080.9 million (20£3,864.7 million) in

respect of group pension funds.

Derivative financial instruments, at fair value through profit and loss, held for trading.

Included within assets held to cover linked lighgs are forward currency contracts with a fairugabain of €18.0 million
(2013: €7.8 million loss). Movements in fair valagse due to variations in exchange rates pregpdinthe dates on which
contracts mature and are reflected in the profit lass account. Gains for the year on foreign euyecontracts amounted to

€25.8 million (2013: €5.9 million loss).

13. DEBTORS ARISING FROM DIRECT INSURANCE OPERATION S

2014 2013

€m €m

Policyholders 37.7 31.8
Intermediaries 15.6 14.9

53.2 46.7

All amounts are due within one year. The carryingpants disclosed above reasonably approximatev&dire at the balance

sheet date.
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14. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Computer Equipment Office Equipment Total
Cost €m €m €m
At 1st January 2014 92.1 0.6 92.7
Additions 0.6 0.8 1.4
Disposals and adjustments 4.7 (0.6) (5.3)
At 31 December 2014 88.0 0.8 88.8
Accumulated Depreciation
At 1st January 2014 (84.7) (0.5) (85.2)
Charge for the year (2.8) (0.2) (2.9)
Disposals and adjustments 4.7 0.6 5.3
At 31 December 2014 (82.8) - 82.8
Net Book Amounts
31st December 20. 5.2 0.8 6.C

31st December 20 7.4 0.1 7.5

For year ended 31 December 2014 €4.7m (2013: €508maisposals and adjustments relates to compofenare with book
value of Nil and no longer in use and €0.6m (2G8iH) refers to fixtures and fittings with book v of Nil and no longer in
use.

15. DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS

Deferred expenses at 1 January
Acquisition expenses incurred during the year
Charged to the technical account

Apportionment for the year

Amortisation of prior year acquisition expenses
Deferred expenses at 31 Decen

On insurance contracts
On investment contracts

2014
€m

206.2

79.7

(11.2)
274.7

9.

205.%

174.9
30.8
205.%

2013
€m

210.3
475

(10.4)
275.3

(69.1)
206.2

166.4
39.8
206.2

Acquisition expenses includes an allocation of cégsimn on new business and operating expensefgetatthe acquisition

of new business

16. OTHER CREDITORS INCLUDING TAXATION AND SOCIAL S ECURITY

Taxation and social security

Government duties and levies

Other

All amounts are due within one year.

€m

7.9
26.5
27.2
61.€
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€m

6.7
12.0
58.1

76.€
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17. ACTUARIAL VALUATION AND UNIT LINKED LIABILITIES

An actuarial valuation of the Company'’s liabilitiess carried out at 31 December 2014 which disdi@ssurplus within the
fund. The amount of surplus applied to meet thal todst of policyholders’ bonus was €0.5 millior®{3: €0.3 million). The
shareholders’ share of the distributed surplus €43&.0 million (2013: €100.0 million). The techrigaovisions relating to

insurance and investment contracts are:

Unit linked Unit linked
Investment Insurance
contracts contracts Total
2014 2014 2014
€m €m €m
At 1 January 5,463.1 6,628.9 12,092.0
Deposits received from policyholders under investineentract 389.¢ - 389.¢
Payments made to policyholders of, and fees dedtiaien (699.7) - (699.7)
investment contrac
Gross policy fees (51.4) - (51.4)
Change in technical provision as shown in the teehmaccount 578.4 697.3 1,275.7
At 31 December 5,680.0 7,326.2 13,006.2
Unit linked Unit linked
Investment Insurance
contracts Contracts Total
2013 2013 2013
€m €m €m
At 1 January 5,244.2 6,240.7 11,484.9
Deposits received from policyholders under investinoentract 422.] - 422.]
Payments made to policyholders of, and fees deddidien (716.5) - (716.5)
investment contrac
Gross policy fees (49.8) - (49.8)
Change in technical provision as shown in the techaccount 563.1 388.2 951.3
At 31 December 5,463.1 6,628.9 12,092.0

Financial liabilities in respect of unit-linked doscts designated as investment are carried obdtance sheet at fair value.
The related fair value of these financial liabddiis €5,680.0 million (2013: €5,463.1 million), iatn is equivalent to the

amount payable under the contract.
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18. RESERVES AND POLICYHOLDERS LIABILITIES

Life Claims
Assuranc outstanding
Provision

€m €m
Gross:
At 1 January 2014 1,853.7 132.4
Change in technical provision 719.3 (10.6)
Profit for the financial year - -
Transfer to non-distributable reserve - -
Actuarial gain on pension scheme (net of deferasjl t - -
Dividends - -
At 31 December 2014 2,573.0 121.8
Reinsurers share:
At 1 January 2014 (1,023.4) (22.7)
Change in technical provision (299.0) 1.0
At 31 December 2014 (1,322.4) (11.7)
Net Amount:
At 1 January 201 830.: 119.7
At 31 December 20! 1,250.¢ 110.]
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Profit and Non- Capita
Loss Account Distributable Reserve
Reserve
€m €m €m
100.2 403.3 42.7
64.9 - -
110.1 (110.1) -
- (30.2) -
(270.0) - -
5.2 263.0 42.7
100.z 403.c 42.7
5.2 263.C 42.7
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18. RESERVES AND POLICYHOLDERS LIABILITIES (Continu ed)

Life Claims
Assuranc outstanding
Provision
€m €m
Gross:
At 1 January 2013 1,746.5 126.0
Change in technical provision 107.2 6.4
Profit for the financial year - -
Transfer to non-distributable reserve - -
Actuarial loss on pension scheme (net of deferasjl t - -
Dividends - -
At 31 December 2013 1,853.7 132.4
Reinsurers share:
At 1 January 2013 (940.6) (18.2)
Change in technical provision (82.8) 5.5
At 31 December 2013 (1,023.4) (12.7)
Net Amount:
At 1 January 201 805.¢ 107.¢
At 31 December 20! 830.: 119.5
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Profit and
Loss Account
€m
93.2

112.4
(12.4)

93.0
100.2

93.Z

100.2

Non- Capita
Distributable Reserve
Reserve
€m €m
387.7 42.7
12.4 -
3.2 -
403.3 42.7
387.7 42.7
403.c 42.7
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19. TECHNICAL PROVISIONS

The principal assumptions used in the calculatiothe life assurance provision are set out below:

Interest Rate Mortality Table
Class of business 2014 2013 2014 2013
Industrial assurance 0.95% 1.45% A1967 -70+1 Al1967 + 1
Non profit life assurance 1.30% 2.10% 90% AMOO/AFO0 98M00/AF00
Life Choice 1.30% 2.10% 80% AMOO/AFQ0 90% AMOO/AF00
Pension immediate annuity 1.38% 2.63% 95% PMAOO MC&.M5% PMAOO MC/2.0%
Expense Inflation 2014 2013
Industrial assurance 0% p.a. 0% p.a.
Non profit life assurance  4.5% p.a 4.5% p.a
Life Choice 4.5% p.a 4.5% p.a
Pension immediate annuity 4.5% p.a 4.5% p.a
Renewal Expenses 2014 2013 Expenses
as % Reserves
€pe €pe
Industrial Assurance 60% of premium income 60% ofrpuen income 0.10% p.a.
Non-linked Protection €47 €49 0.10% p.a.
Life Choice €47 €49 0.10% p.a.
Pension immediate annuity €43 €44 0.10% p.a.

Explicit provision is made in the life assurancevision for vested reversionary bonuses and a lef/éliture bonus. Also
included in the Life Assurance provision is an antaf €2.3 million (2013: €2.3 million) for termahbonuses.

The principal assumptions used in the catmnaof the technical provision for linked liabiés are set out below:

Interest Rate Mortality Table
Class of business 2014 2013 2014 2013
Unit Linked Pensions 1.30% 2.60% 110% AMOO/AF00 110%0GENAFO0
Unit Linked Life 0.85% 2.65% 110% AMOO/AF00 110% AMOGZR0
2014 2013
Expense Inflation 4.5% p.a 4.5% p.a
20. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 2014 2013
€m €m
Authorised
200,000,000 ordinary shares of 13c each 26.0 6.0

(2013 : 200,000,000)

Issued and Fully Paid
175,500,001 ordinary shares of 13c each 22.8
(2013 : 175,500,001)

oo
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21. PROVISION FOR OTHER RISKS AND CHARGES — Deferred taxation asset

2014 2013
€m €m
Deferred tax (asset) / liability at 1 January (6.6) 22.0)
Net change for the year (Note 8) 14.0 15.5
7.4 (6.6)
The provision for deferred taxation comprises:
Unrealised gains / (losses) on investments 7.3 (6.5)
Other timing differences 0.1 (0.1)
Deferred tax (asset) / liability at 31 Decen 7.4 (6.6)

The deferred tax asset on the pension liabilitg1.7 million (2013: €8.3 million) is shown as paftthe net pension scheme
liability (Note 24). The movement in the year of£4nillion is shown in the Statement of total regisgd gains and losses.

22. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS

2014 2013

€m €m

Fees 0.3 0.3
Salaries for management services 1.3 1.2
Company pension contributions 0.2 0.2

1.8 1.7
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23. SUBSIDIARIES Nature of Percentage = Coumt
Business Owned
General Investment Trust Limited Pension Trustem@amy 100% Ireland
Leopardstown Offices Management Limited Propertyngany 100% Ireland
Weesperplein 6 Holding BV Holding Company 100% Netherlands
Weesperplein 6 BV Property Company 100% Netherlands
Life Fund Syndication Holding BV Holding Company 0/5] Netherlands
Life Fund Syndication BV Property Company 100% Netherlands
SCI Jupiter Immeuble Property Company 100% France
Noisy Le Grand Paris SARL Holding Company 100% Luxembourg
Rue Saint George SARL Holding Company 100% Luxembourg
SCI Immeuble Saint George Property Company 100% France
Les Borromees SARL Holding Company 100% Luxembourg
SCI Sang Rouge Property Company 100% France
BSQ Limited Property Company 100% reldnd

General Investment Trust is a company which offegasion trustee services to corporate pensiontsliehNew Ireland
Assurance plc.

The other companies are vehicles with respectdpepty funds.
The registered office of General Investment Trustiled is situated at 11-12 Dawson Street, Dublin 2
The registered office of Leopardstown Offices Maaragnt Limited is situated at Bank of Ireland, 40spieRoad, Dublin 4.

The registered office of the Netherlands subsidgis TMF Group, Luna ArenA, Herikerbergweg 23801 CM Amsterdam
P.O. Box 23393, 1100 DW Amsterdam

The registered office of the Luxembourg subsidae&cept Lisbonne Lux SARL, is TMF Group, L 1855<embourg, 46A
Avenue JF Kennedy.

The registered office of the French subsidiarigsriandite & Ardoise, 4 Rue Cambon, 75001, Paris.
The Company’s investment in these subsidiariesistansf ordinary shares.
BSQ Limited is in receivership with KPMG Dublin.

Lisbonne Lux SARL was liquidated on 31 Decemberf201
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24. PENSION COSTS

The Company operates a group defined benefit pessioeme, which is closed to new members and ctivenrsajority of the
Company’s employees and directors. The assetedafdheme are held in separate trustee adminidienddThe pension cost
is assessed in accordance with the advice of apamtent actuary using the Projected Unit Credihatk

The latest actuarial assessment of the New Ired@sdirance pension scheme was at 31 March 2013pfliepal assumption
used in the actuarial valuation was that the diffiee between the investment return and pensiomaefsianeration increases
would average 3.5%. At the date of the latest aiztiigaluation, the market value of the schemesetswas €174.9m and the
actuarial value of the assets was less than theieddiabilities based on current earnings, and &gsvalent to 95% of the
liabilities allowing for expected future increasasearnings. At that date, actuarial advice condidnthat the scheme did not
meet the required Funding Standard. However a durtfaluation at 31 May 2013 indicated that the fumet the Funding
Standard at that date due mainly to a strong ass&irmance over the intervening period from 31 éha2013.

The actuarial report is available for inspectionnhgmbers of the scheme, but not for public inspactNo contributions are
outstanding at the year end.

The following are the major assumptions used byatieary in the calculation of the amounts recaghis the financial
statements

2014 2013
Inflation 1.50% 2.00%
Salary Increases 2.00% 2.50%
Pension payment increases 1.25% 1.75%
Pension increases for deferred benefits 1.45% 1.90%
Discount rate 2.20% 3.65%

The assumption for price inflation is set by refe@to the European Central Bank inflation targefurozone countries

The discount rate at 31 December 2014 has beermdeésl with reference to market yields at the bedasheet date on high
quality corporate bonds (AA rated or equivalentaafuration appropriate to the scheme.

The annual expenses which relate to active menasersecorded within the service cost. The impanbismaterial.
The mortality tables adopted are

62% PNMLOO for males
70% PNFLOO for females.

2014 2014 2013 2013

Males Females Males Females

Longevity at age 65 for members currently aged €&y 21.8 23.6 22.1 23.6
Longevity at age 65 for members currently aged &5y 25.3 26.7 25.6 26.7
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24. PENSION COSTS (continued)

The balance recognised in the Balance Sheet is:

Actuarial value of liabilities
Fair value of scheme assets
Deficit in the scheme
Related deferred tax

Net pension liabilit

The reconciliation of the movements to the BalancBheet is as follows:

Deficit at 1 January

Employer contributions

Net benefit expense for period
Actuarial (loss ) / gain

Deficit at 31 Decembr

The following discloses the changes in the scheméabilities and assets

Scheme liabilities at 1 January
Employer service cost

Interest cost

Scheme participants contribution
Actuarial loss

Benefits paid

Scheme liabilities at 31 Decem

39

2014
€m

(310.2)
208.9

(101.3)

12.7

(88.6

€m

(65.9)

5.2
(6.0)
34.6

(101.3

2014
€m

252.8
4.9
9.1
1.0

49.7
(7.3)
3107

2013
€m

(252.8)
186.9
(65.9)

8.3

(57.6

€m

(70.0)
6.2
(5.8)
3.7

(65.9

2013
€m

2375
4.6
9.1
1.0
7.5

(6.9)

252 ¢
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24. PENSION COSTS (continued)

Change in Scheme Assets

2014 2013
€m €m
Scheme assets at 1 January 186.9 167.5
Actual return on assets 23.1 19.2
Employer contribution 5.2 6.1
Scheme participants contribution 1.0 1.0
Benefits paid (7.3) (6.9)
Scheme assets at 31 Decer 208.¢ 186.¢

The major categories of plan assets as a percentagktotal plan assets are as follows

2014 2013
Equities 56.0% 60.0%
Fixed Interest 26.0% 24.0%
Property 10.0% 9.0%
Cash 8.0% 7.0%

The assets do not include any of New Ireland Assi@&ompany plc own financial instruments or argpprty occupied
by New Ireland Assurance Company plc.

The amounts recognised in the profit and loss accats are as follows

2014 2013

€m €m

Expected return on scheme assets 8.0 8.0
Less interest on scheme liabilities (9.1) (9.1)
Employer service cost (4.9) (4.7
Total charge to Profit and Loss (note (6.0) (5.8)

40



NEW IRELAND ASSURANCE COMPANY, PUBLIC LIMITED COMPA NY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

24. PENSION COSTS (continued)

Analysis of amounts recognised in Statement of Tdt&ecognised Gains and Losses

2014 2013
€m €m
Gains on assets 15.1 11.2
Reduction in liabilities 15 3.6
Change in assumptions (51.2) (11.1)
(34.6; 3.7

History of experience gains and losse
for year ended 31 December 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Difference between expected and actual return beme assets (€m) 151 11.2 12.5 (13.9) 6.3
Percentage of scheme assets 7% 6% 7% -10% 4%
Experience losses on schemes liabilities ( €m) 15 6 3. 8.9 0.6 6.3
Percentage of scheme liabilities 0% 1% 4% 0% 4%
Liability assumptions
Liability movement during period (€m) (51.2) (11.1) 2(8) (6.4) 19.1
Percentage of scheme liabilities -17% -4% -22% -3% 11%
Deficit in the plan ( €m)
Actuarial value of liability (€m) (310.2) (252.8) (237.5) (187.2) (175.2)
Fair value of assets (€m) 208.9 186.9 167.5 146.0 149.9
Deficit in the plan (€m) (101.3) (65.9) (70.0) (41.2) (25.3)

Expected employer contributions for the year ergledecember 2015 are €5.3 million. Expected em@amantributions for
the year ended 31 December 2015 are €1.1 million.

Sensitivity analysis for each of the key assumptienused to measure the scheme liabilities at 31 Dedger 2014

Change in Impact on scheme
assumption liabilites (€m)
Factor
Discount rate 0.1% decrease 6.7
Rate of inflation 0.1% decrease (6.1)
Rate of salary growth 0.1% decrease (2.0)
Life expectancy 1 year increase 9.9
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25. RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT IN EQUITY SHAREHOLDE RS FUNDS.

€m €m
Profit for the financial year 64.9 112.4
Other recognised (losses) / gains during the year 0.2J3 3.2
Total gains and losses recognised relating to ¢lae y 34.7 115.6
Dividends (270.0) (93.0)
Net (decrease ) / increase in equity shareholfierds (235.3) 22.6
Opening equity shareholders' funds 594.7 572.1
Closing equity shareholders' ful 359.4 594.7

26. MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISK

Financial risk management objectives

The Company is exposed to a range of financiakribkough its financial assets, financial liabél@tj reinsurance assets and
policyholder liabilities. In particular, the keynfincial risk is that the proceeds from financialeds are not sufficient to fund
the obligations arising from non-linked insurancdiqes as they fall due. The most important congras of this financial risk
are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidiigke

The principal technique of the Company’s Asset lligbmanagement policy is to match assets to thie-imked liabilities by
reference to the type of benefits payable to cenhthalders. The Company invests in a portfolio @feyeign and corporate
bonds to match these liabilities. The Company moerd to market risk on this business to the exktentthe discounted value
of the liabilities differs from the market value the assets.

The Company has not changed the processes usexhammits risks from previous periods.
The investment return on assets backing unit-lifliedailities flows directly to the policyholders drthey bear the investment

risk on these assets. There is little in the waymtions in the portfolio. Where guarantees havenbgranted (typically a
minimum return of the amount invested), these guaes have been provided by Bank of Ireland Gldtsakets.
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26. MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISK (continued )
The following tables reconcile the entire balanoees to each distinct category of liability:
Classification at 31 December 2014
Unit Linked  Non-linked Other Total
Contracts  Contracts
€m €m €m €m
Shares and other variable yield securities and umitinit trusts
at fair value through the profit and loss: - Lisssturities 7,961.3 - 59.6 8,020.9
- Unlisted securities 585.9 17.0 602.9
Debt securities and other fixed income securitiasfair value
through profit and loss: - Listed 1,375.5 1,228.2 319.3 2,923.0
Derivative financial instruments, at FVTPL 1,709.3 - 1,709.3
Loans and receivables - - 0.2 0.2
Deposits and cash balances 768.0 - 186.9 954.9
Property 741.4 - 17.1 758.5
Reinsurance assets - 1,359.5 - 1,359.5
Other assets 0.9 4.1 248.8 253.8
Total asse 13,142.: 2,591.¢ 848.¢ 16,583.
Long term business provision - 2,573.0 - 2,573.0
Claims outstanding - - 121.8 121.8
Technical provisions for linked liabilities 13,006.2 - - 13,006.2
Deposits received from reinsurers - 18.8 - 18.8
Loans and borrowings - - 245.3 245.3
Provisions for other risks and charges - - 7.4 7.4
Other liabilities 136.1 - 115.0 251.1
Total liabilities 13,142.: 2,591.¢ 489.k 16,223.(
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26. MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISK (continued)

Classification at 31 December 2013

Unit Linked  Non-linked Other Total
Contracts  Contracts
€m €m €m €m
Shares and other variable yield securities and umitinit trusts
at fair value through the profit and loss: - Lisseturities 7,251.5 21.4 7,272.9
- Unlisted securities 603.5 17.7 621.2
Debt Securities and other fixed Income securitiasfair value
through profit and loss: - Listed 1,313.9 871.0 319.5 2,504.4
Derivative financial instruments, at FVTPL 1,451.4 - 14514
Loans and receivables - - 0.2 0.2
Deposits and cash balances 851.0 - 303.7 1,154.7
Property 717.0 - 134 730.4
Reinsurance assets - 1,023.4 12.7 1,036.1
Provisions for other risks and charges - - 6.6 6.6
Other assets 2.8 - 300.7 303.5
Total assets 12,191.: 1,894 995.¢ 15,081..
Long term business provision - 1,853.7 - 1,853.7
Claims outstanding - - 132.4 132.4
Technical provisions for linked liabilities 12,092.0 - - 12,092.0
Deposits received from reinsurers - 19.9 - 19.9
Loans and borrowings - - 48.2 48.2
Other liabilities 99.1 20.8 220.6 340.5
Total liabilities 12,191.. 1,894.: 401.2 14,486.

MARKET RISK

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises primarily from investngeint fixed interest securities. In addition to theent that the present value of
future claim costs are related to interest rafabijlities to policyholders are exposed to intenedé risk. Insurance contracts
may have benefit payments that are fixed and gtednat the inception of the contract. The findnctanponent of these
benefits is usually a guaranteed fixed interest (&ir the insurance contracts, this rate may applynaturity and/or death
benefits) and hence the Company’s primary finandgk on these contracts is the risk that inteiesbme and capital
redemptions from the financial assets backing thbilities is insufficient to fund the guaranteednkfits payable. The
Company monitors interest rate risk by calculatihg mean duration of the investment portfolio arfidhe liabilities to
policyholders under insurance contracts. The maaatidn is an indicator of the sensitivity of thesats and liabilities to
changes in current interest rates. The mean duarafithe liabilities is determined by means of pming expected cash flows
from the contracts using prudent estimates of rityrtand voluntary terminations. This is calculat@da consistent manner
with the prior year. Any gap between the mean domadf the assets and the estimated mean durafidneoliabilities is
minimised by means of buying and selling fixed it securities of different durations.
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26. MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISK (continued)

The Company invests in government fixed interesusges and corporate bonds of appropriate terrsetmure the promised
benefits. The Company is not exposed to stock nhankeements on this business. As a result typidakést rate movements
are matched by equivalent movements in liabilities.the extent however, that interest rate movesare risk related, this

will have an impact on the Company’s capital positi

The government securities are diversified betweish,| French, Belgian, Italian and Austrian borfise corporate bonds are
predominantly made up of a portfolio in excess @ different bonds and there is maximum exposusntoissuer of 5%. The

fund is spread across a number of different coesitfaccording to countries of risk). There is asspread among industries
but the guidelines explicitly exclude any investiienbank bonds as a way of diversifying from then@pany’s sovereign risk

exposure. Asset backed securities are also excludexthis fund.

The sensitivity analysis for interest rate riskusirates how changes in the fair value or futurehcddows of a financial

instrument will fluctuate because of changes inkeinterest rates at the reporting date. Managemenitors the sensitivity

of interest rate movements by assessing the expebgmnges in the different portfolios due to patathiovements of 50 basis
points in all yield curves.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivityatpossible change in interest rates, with all otagiables held constant, of
the Company’s profit and net assets.

Impact on Profit and Net Assets

2014 2013

€m €m
Increase in yield curve +50 bps 7.7 (3.3)
Decrease in yield curve — 50bps (12.8) 1.0

The above sensitivities do not include any impacespect of the Company’s pension schemes.

(b) Equity price Risk

The Company does not bear any of the equity pigtedirectly — this is borne by the policyholderbowreceive the gains or
losses associated with the equities. The Compaay dulirectly derive income from management feésray from the value
of funds under management. A 5% increase in equéskets half way through the year will increasefipgdy €1.4 million
(2013: €1.4 million).

(c) Currency Risk

The Company does not bear any currency risk directhis is borne by the policyholders. All asdegtd to match non linked
liabilities are denominated in Euro. The Compangsimdirectly derive income from management feesray from the value
of funds under management. A 5% movement in exahaatgs half way through the year will change psdfiy €0.6 million

(2013: €0.7 million).

(d) Lapse Risk

Lapse risk is the risk that a greater than anttegh@aumber of policies cease paying premiums ageader from the Company.
The Company derives income from the management fgemium charges and other cash flows from itsrasts. When a
higher number of policies lapse than anticipatésllill have a negative impact on the profit of tfear.

(e) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that cash may not be italsle at a reasonable cost to pay obligations wihgz The Company is
exposed to daily calls on its available cash resmimainly from claims arising from non linked iremuce contracts. The
Company holds sufficient short term cash depositoter such claims.

The Company manages its liquidity risk by adoptngolicy of matching assets and liabilities. Of flmancial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, €10.9 billion (20X3.8 billion) are listed on recognised exchangetsae regularly traded and
therefore these financial assets could be realisedemand if required to cover liabilities undesurance and investment
contracts which due to surrender options coulddyaple on demand.
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26. MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISK (continued)

31 December 2014

Financial liabilities under investment contract
Due to fellow subsidiaries

Creditors and accruals

Bank overdraft

Loans and borrowings

Total

31 December 2013

Financial liabilities under investment contract
Due to fellow subsidiaries

Creditors and accruals

Bank overdraft

Loans and borrowings

Total

Demand O0-3mths 3-12mths 1-5years 5years+ Tbta
€m €m €m €m €m €m
5EB - - - - 5,680.0

- 11.8 - - - 11.8
- 114.4 - - 114.4
- 42.7 - - - 42.7
- - 2.6 120.0 80.0 202.6
5,680.( 168.¢ 2.6 120.( 80.C 6,051.

Demand O0-3mths 3-12mths 1-5years 5years+ Tbta
€m €m €m €m €m €m
R46 - - - - 5,463.1

- 9.9 - - - 9.9
- 221.5 - - 221.5
- 48.2 - - - 48.2
5,463.: 279.¢ - - - 5,742."

(f) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will beable to pay amounts in full when due. Key amshsre the Company is

exposed to credit risk are:

* amounts due from insurance intermediaries;

e amounts due from sovereign and corporate bondrissue

* amounts due from insurance contract holders;

e amounts on deposit with other credit institutions:
* reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities; and,

e amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claimeadly paid.

The Company manages the levels of credit riskaepts by placing limits on its exposure to a sirggienterparty or groups of
counterparties. Such risks are subject to regelaew.

The Company has a material credit risk exposura tmumber of reinsurance companies. Reinsuranceed to manage

insurance risk. This does not, however, dischangeQompany’s liability as primary insurer. If anmgirer fails to pay a claim,

the Company remains liable for the payment to thiecyholder. The creditworthiness of reinsurersasisidered on an annual
basis by reviewing their financial strength priar finalisation of any contract. In addition, managat assesses the
creditworthiness of all reinsurers and intermedisiy reviewing credit grades provided by ratingraies and other publicly
available financial information. An analysis ofnigurers by Standard & Poors rating (or equivalisnpyoduced periodically.

The Company uses a panel of highly rated reinserammnpanies to diversify credit risk. The Compaiso aoperates a
Reinsurance Committee that reports to the Risk Cittegnat least annually and in addition on matet&hs as they arise.
Inter alia, the Committee considers retention Iewaaross the business lines, the credit ratingeoféinsurance companies and
the extent of our exposure to each reinsurance @oygreinsurance in respect of annuity business & collateralised basis.
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26. MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISK (continued)
The assets bearing credit risk are summarised below

Unit Linked  Non-linked Other Total

Contracts Contracts
€m €m €m €m

31 December 2014
Debt Securities and other fixed Income securitiasfair value
through profit and loss:- Listed 1,375.5 1,228.2 319.3 2,923.0
Derivative financial instruments, at FVTPL 1,709.3 - 1,709.3
Loans and receivables - - 0.2 0.2
Deposits and cash balances 768.0 - 186.9 954.9
Reinsurance assets - 1,359.5 - 1,359.5
Total Asset 3,852.¢ 2,5687." 506.¢ 6,946.¢
31 December 2013
Debt Securities and other fixed Income securitiasfair value
through profit and loss:- Listed 1,313.9 871.0 319.5 2,504.4
Derivative financial instruments, at FVTPL 1,451.4 - 1,4514
Loans and receivables - - 0.2 0.2
Deposits and cash balances 851.0 - 303.7 1,154.7
Reinsurance assets - 1,023.4 12.7 1,036.1
Total Asset 3,616.: 1,894.. 636.1 6,146.¢

An analysis of the credit rating of assets beadraglit risk which includes the reinsurance asseth Isovereign bonds, Euro
sovereign bonds, corporate bonds and cash deposisimmarised below:

AAA
AA+
AA
AA -
A+

A

A -
BBB+
BBB
BBB-
BB+
Other and unrated

2014 2014 2013 2013
Unit Linked Non-linked / Unit Linked Non-linked
Contracts Other Contracts Contracts
Contracts
€m €m €m €m
271.9 - 359.0 -
232.9 246.3 372.6 510.1
428.3 532.1 7.0 135
0.6 1,207.0 95.8 5334
178.0 236.1 12.1 205.2
379.5 580.8 238.7 73.7
2.2 69.5 2.6 64.4
168.5 30.6 507.5 436.4
- 66.2 18.0 1135
19.3 52.3 - 17.2
2,171.6 73.2 2,003.0 129.5
- - - 433.6
3,852.8 3,094.1 3,616.3 2,530.5

No credit limits were exceeded during the period. f\hancial assets are past due or impaired atré¢perting date and
management expects no significant losses from mofoipnance by these counterparties.

The Company maintains strict control limits on opharivative positions, by both amount and term. aheunt subject to
credit risk at any one time is limited to the cuatr&air value of derivative financial assets
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26. MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISK (continued)

(g) Unit linked contracts

For unit-linked contracts the Company matcheshellliabilities with assets in the portfolio on whithe unit prices are based.
Therefore there is no interest, price, currencgredit risk attaching to these assets for the Compa all risk is borne by the
policyholder. However the Company does carry tipaitational risk of managing these amounts on betigdblicyholders and
receives investment management fees based on thénked assets under management. The Compangftrer has an
indirect exposure to the performance of world ggoarkets. The amount related to unit linked castrancluded in the assets
bearing credit risk was €13.1 billion (2013: €1Biion).

(h) Operational risk

Operational risk is defined as the risk of lossltisg from inadequate or failed internal procesgpemple and systems or from
external events.

The Company faces operational risks in the nornuasyit of its business objectives. The primary gaafl operational risk
management and assurance are ensuring the susgiiratal integrity of the Company’s operations aheé protection of its
reputation by controlling, mitigating or transfegi the risk of financial losses. By its nature, mienal risk cannot be fully
eliminated, however the Company has establishaexraal approach to the management of operationlimishe form of an
‘Operational Risk Management Framework’ which definthe Company’s approach to identifying, assessimgnaging,
monitoring and reporting the operational risks whicay impact the achievement of the Company’s lessimbjectives.

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The table below shows, for the Company’s finanaidets and liabilities that are recognised and unedsat fair value, their
classification within a three — level fair valuestarchy.

Level 1 comprises financial assets and liabilities valusihg quoted market prices in active markets. Aivaanarket is one
in which transactions occur with sufficient volueued frequency to provide pricing information onagoing basis.

Level 2comprises financial assets and liabilities valusidgitechniques based significantly on observalalgket data.

Level 3 comprises financial assets and liabilities valusithg techniques where the impact of the non olasdéevmarket data is
significant in determining the fair value of thesirument. Non observable market data is not readibilable in an active
market due to market illiquidity or complexity dfet product. These inputs are generally determiasddon observable inputs
of a similar nature, or analytical techniques.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€m €m €m €m
Category
Financial Assets held at fair value
at 31 December 2014
Equities and unit trusts 8,020.9 585.9 17.0 8,623.8
Debt securities 2,923.0 - - 2,923.0
Derivative instruments - 1,709.3 - 1,709.3
Non Financial Assets held at fair value
at 31 December 2014
Investment Property - - 741.4 741.4
Owner Occupied Property - - 17.1 17.1
10,943.¢ 2,295.; 775.5 14,014.(
Financial Liabilities held at fair value
at 31 December 2014
Liabilities to customers
Under insurance contracts - 7,326.2 - 7,326.2
Under investment contracts - 5,680.0 - 5,680.0
- 13,006.2 - 13,006.2
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26. MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISK (continued)

Category

Financial Assets held at fair value
at 31 December 2013

Equities and unit trusts
Debt Securities
Derivative instruments

Non Financial Assets held at fair value
at 31 December 2013

Investment Property

Owner Occupied Property

Financial Liabilities held at fair value
at 31 December 2013

Liabilities to customers

Under insurance contracts
Under investment contracts

Movements in Level 3 Assets

Opening Balance 2014
Investment Gains
Additions

Disposals

Closing Balance 20:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€m €m £€m €m
7,272.9 603.5 17.7 7,894.1
2,504.4 - - 2,504.4
- 1,451.4 - 1,451.4
- - 717.0 717.0
- - 134 134
9,777.1 2,054.¢ 748.1 12,580.
- 6,628.9 - 6,628.9
- 5,463.1 - 5,463.1
- 12,092.( - 12,092.(
Equities and Investment Owner Total
Unit Trusts Property Occupied
Property
€m €m €m €m
17.7 717.0 134 748.1
- 106.9 3.7 110.6
- 57.1 - 57.1
(0.7) (139.6) - (140.3)
17.C 741.¢ 17.1 775.5
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company maintains an efficient capital strueténom a combination of equity shareholders’ fursdsl borrowings
consistent with the Company’s risk profile and tbgulatory and market requirements of its business.

The Company holds technical reserves to meet atsiliies to policyholders based on prudent actlaaissumptions. In
addition, the Central Bank of Ireland requires @@mpany to hold an excess of assets over lialsilitte meet a required
minimum statutory solvency margin.

In reporting our financial strength, capital andveacy is measured using the regulations prescriiyethe Central Bank of

Ireland. These regulatory capital tests are baped vequired levels of solvency capital and a sesfeprudent assumptions in
respect of the type of business written by the Camp

(a) Capital management objectives

The Company’s objectives in managing its capital ar
* to meet the requirements of the Central Bank déie;
e to provide security for policyholders;
« to maintain sufficient financial strength to suppmew business growth; and
« to manage the interests of the Company within idleappetite approved by the Board.

(b) Restrictions on available capital resources

The Company must maintain sufficient capital to e threshold of the required minimum statutoojvency margin
requirement. The Central Bank of Ireland would etmeCompany to exceed the minimum amount andghisflected in the
Company’s capital management policy. Subject toaheve, surplus that has been transferred to tagelksblders fund is
unencumbered. Surplus retained within the life @sste fund is not available for distribution to wolders.

The capital held within the shareholders’ fundgéserally available to meet any requirements.rtaias the intention of the
Board and management to ensure that there is adecpaital to exceed the Company’s regulatory requents.

(c) Available capital resources
The table below sets out the levels of free asseld by the Company compared to the minimum reduing regulation
(‘regulatory basis’).

50



NEW IRELAND ASSURANCE COMPANY, PUBLIC LIMITED COMPA NY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

26. MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISK (continued)

2014 2013
€m €m
Total shareholder funds 359.4 594.7
Adjustments
Regulatory reserve (55.9) (55.2)
Adjustment for investment contract reserves (52.0) 0.4%
Deferred acquisition costs / Deferred income liibil (175.8) (169.9)
Deferred tax (21.1) (22.7)
Asset valuation adjustment (18.0) (18.9)
Capital restructure : financial reinsurance 120.0 -
Capital restructure : subordinated debt 80.0 -
Pension scheme - FRS 17 basis 88.6 57.6
Total free assets available for regulatory solvencgurposes 325.2 355.2
Minimum statutory solvency requirement (190.6) (175.2
Excess assets over solvency margin require 134.¢ 180.(
Total policyholder liabilities on regulatory basis
Unit linked liabilities 13,2175 12,297.8
Non linked liabilities 1,198.7 748.1
Total liabilities 14,416.2 13,045.9
Cost of bonus 0.5 0.3
14,416. 13,046..

The cover for the required minimum statutory sobyemargin at December 2014 was satisfactory, witbets of €325.2
million available to cover a solvency margin reguaient of €190.6 million, representing cover of 1(Z@13: 2.03) times the
required amount.
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26. MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISK (continued)

(d) Movements in capital resources

2014 2013
€m €m
Balance at 1st Janui 355.2 328.(
Cash generated (after new business s 42.0 60.9
Change in pension schel 2.1 24.9
Risk benefit 8.2 4.9
Markets and basis movements 2.7 435
Other items (12.4) (14.0
Capital restructure : financial reinsurance 120.0 -
Capital restructure : subordinated debt 80.0 -
Interest on capital instruments (2.6) -
Dividend (270.0) (93.0
Balance at 31st December 325.2 355.2

(e) Capital resource sensitivities

The Company carries out regular assessments girtiected future solvency position, under a nundfadifferent scenarios,

which are documented in the Financial Conditiond&eprhis Report is made available to the CentahiBof Ireland. As part

of this Report, a projection of the Company’s sabe position over the next five years is documenfBais Report has

confirmed the financial strength of the Companyapital position and the resilience of this capgiakition under the stress
tests examined. An examination of the risks to White Company is exposed, and the steps we hage takmitigate these
risks, is set out below.

Market risk:

The Company’s capital position is relatively indéme to market movements as the bulk of our ligiles are unit linked with

policyholders bearing the investment risk. Non-tidKiabilities are closely matched by governmerdrgateed fixed interest
securities and corporate bonds of appropriate duras outlined above. The Company’s free assetsmainly held in cash
and short-term financial instruments. The Compaald$1a number of corporate bonds and governmentagteed fixed

interest securities. To the extent that yield iases on the assets are risk related, represeraekatmisk for the Company.

The Company’s pension schemes contain an expasunarket risk which can impact on the capital posibf the Company.

Insurance risk:

The Company uses reinsurance to mitigate the imgfanbrtality and morbidity risks. Our current pfiis to reinsure 90% of
new guaranteed protection business and to reimsuyea small part of flexible protection unit-lintkeontracts. The Company
reinsures 50% of all new individual annuity contsad he company also reinsures 75% of new incortegtion business.

Credit risk:

The Company uses a number of different reinsuranoganies of appropriate financial strength in nyargits life assurance
business. The Company’s asset liability matchinicpancludes significant holdings of corporate ldgrand sovereign debt of
a number of Euro zone countries. The most sigmfib@lding of sovereign debt is French sovereidgot.de

(f) Options & Guarantees

The Company has a very limited range of options guakrantees in its business portfolio as the bélthe business is unit
linked without investment guarantees. Where investnguarantees have been given on unit linked bssithey have been
fully hedged (as in the case of structured prodsath as tracker bonds and Guaranteed Evergreeth) . Bbime Company has

not granted guaranteed annuity options on anysdfusiness
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27. FUTURE CAPITAL COMMITMENTS NOT PROVIDED FOR

Authorised but not contracted
Contracted

28. OTHER FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

2014
€m

0.2
0.0

2013
€m

0.4
0.2

At 31 December 2014 the Company had annual commismeder non-cancellable operating leases of @l®&n
(2013: €8.5 million). The leases are due to exairéollows:

Total

Within one year

More than one year - within five years
More than five years

Property

Within one year

More than one year - within five years
More than five years

Other

Within one year

More than one year - within five years
More than five years

29. LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Financial reinsurance
Subordinated debt

Movement during the year

2014

Financial reinsurance

At 1 January 2014
Issued in 2014
Interest charged

At 31 December 20:

€m

120.0

0.9

120.¢

53

2014
€m

1.2
4.0
3.6
8.8

1.1
3.8
3.6
8.5

0.1
0.2

2014
€m
120.9
81.7
202.¢

2014

Subordinated debt

€m

80.0
1.7

81.7

2013
€m

1.2
3.4
3.9
8.5

1.2
3.1
3.9
8.2

2013
€m

2014
Total
€m

200.0
2.6

202.¢
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29. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued)

The subordinated debt of €80 million was issuedNbyv Ireland Assurance plc to Bank of Ireland Gower& Co at a fixed
rate up to the first call date in 2019. The submatid debt terms include mandatory interest paysrerthe note holder, a step
up in the rate charged after a defined period abbbek on dividend payments to shareholders whitst interest repayments
are outstanding. The interest rate is fixed at 4p@¥annum until 29 July 2019 (the first reset fate

New Ireland Assurance plc and an external thirdypaxecuted a Financial Reassurance agreementirgar contingent loan
of €120 million secured against a defined blockhe in force book of business. Under the agreeniéerty Ireland has an
obligation to repay the loan along with a risk pi@m over the term of agreement but the obligati®rcantingent on the
surpluses arising from the defined portion of thkig of in force emerging in the future. The riskrmpium was set at 1.75% in
2014.

30. HOLDING COMPANY

The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of BanKrefand Life Holdings Ltd which is incorporated ihe Republic of
Ireland. The ultimate parent Company is the Govesmal Company of the Bank of Ireland which is dfsmrporated in the
Republic of Ireland. The Governor and Company ef Bank of Ireland is the parent company of the autyup for which

group financial statements are drawn up and of vtie Company is a member. Copies of the groumdiiah statements of
the Governor and Company of the Bank of Irelandsasglable from Bank of Ireland, 40 Mespil Road b 4.

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with other companies within the gramp not disclosed as the Company has taken adeanfahe exemption

available under FRS 8 on the basis that the grmamdéial statements of the Governor and ComparleBank of Ireland are
publicly available as referred to in note 30.

32. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

No significant events, affecting the Company or ahigs subsidiary undertakings, have occurredesthe balance sheet date.

33. CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The financial statements of the parent CompanyGbeernor and Company of the Bank of Ireland, idela consolidated
cash flow statement dealing with the cash flowghef group. In accordance with the exemptions aéfdrdy FRS 1, the
Company has not presented a cash flow statement.

34. GROUP ACCOUNTS

The Company has not prepared consolidated finastagé¢ments as it has taken advantage of the exmsngptailable under
both paragraph 21 of Financial Reporting Standard\&@ounting for Subsidiary Undertakings” and Regidn 8 of the
European Communities (Companies: Group AccountguRRéons, 1992, on the basis that its resultsrasleded in the group
accounts of the Governor and Company of the Banketdnd.

35. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION.

Some information in relation to the prior year bagn amended for comparative purposes. The nehretum pension scheme
is now included in net operating expenses.

36. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Biremn 30 April 2015.
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